
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA :  CRIMINAL NO.                           

v. :  DATE FILED:                               

DENNIS ATIYEH :  VIOLATIONS: 18 U.S.C. § 1955 
JOSEPH ATIYEH      (Illegal gambling business -

     1 Count)
     18 U.S.C. § 1956(h)
     (Conspiracy to engage in
      money laundering - 1 Count)
     18 U.S.C. § 1956(a)(1)(A)(i)
     (Money laundering - 2 Counts)
     18 U.S.C. § 1956(a)(2)(A)
     (Money laundering - 12 Counts)
     18 U.S.C. § 2 
     (Willfully causing) 
     18 U.S.C. § 982
     (Notice of Forfeiture) 

I N D I C T M E N T

COUNT ONE

THE GRAND JURY CHARGES THAT:

1.  Between on or about November 10, 1995, and in or about May, 1996,

English Sports Betting, also known as English Sports Information Processors and English Sports

(“ESB”), was a sports betting business operated by defendants DENNIS ATIYEH and JOSEPH

ATIYEH in Lehigh County, Pennsylvania, in Montego Bay, Jamaica and elsewhere.  

2. Between on or about November 10, 1995, and in or about May, 1996,

Sports Marketing and Sales, also known as Sports Sales and Marketing, was located at 881 Third

Street, Whitehall, Pennsylvania and operated by defendant DENNIS ATIYEH.  Sports Marketing
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and Sales provided marketing services for ESB.

3. Between in or about January, 1996, and in or about May, 1996, Las Vegas

Sports News was a newspaper with offices located at 881 Third Street, Whitehall, Pennsylvania

operated by defendant DENNIS ATIYEH.   The newspaper provided information to customers of

ESB and was used to market and promote ESB. 

4. Between on or about November 10, 1995, and in or about May, 1996,

defendant DENNIS ATIYEH used the business office at 881 Third Street, Whitehall,

Pennsylvania to conduct business for ESB.  

5. Between on or about November 10, 1995, and in or about May, 1996,

through the offices in Lehigh County, Pennsylvania, individuals would call and get information

about ESB, open accounts with ESB, and learn how to forward money to gamble with ESB.  

6. At times material to this indictment, Sports Connection was a sports

apparel business located in Emmaus, Pennsylvania and operated by an individual whose identity is

known to the grand jury.  Between in or about November, 1995, and in or about January, 1996,

Sports Connection received funds from ESB customers to be used to open accounts and wager. 

7. Between in or about November, 1995, and in or about May, 1996,

Worldwide Financial Processors, also known as Worldwide Financial Services, was a business

operating in Baton Rouge, Louisiana.  Worldwide Financial Processors collected funds from ESB

customers to open accounts and place bets.  Worldwide Financial Processors was operated by

individuals whose identities are known to the grand jury.   At all times material to this indictment,

defendant JOSEPH ATIYEH was President of Worldwide Financial Processors.

8. Between in or about November, 1995, and in or about January, 1996, ESB
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received funds from ESB customers for opening accounts and placing bets by Western Union

money orders negotiated in Allentown, Pennsylvania, in the name of ESB and another individual

whose identity is known to the grand jury. 

9. Between on or about November 10, 1995, and in or about May, 1996,

employees at the offices in Lehigh County, Pennsylvania, provided instructions to ESB customers

on how to forward funds through Western Union and by other means to ESB in the names of

ESB, Sports Connection, Worldwide Financial and in the name of another individual whose

identity is known to the grand jury.

10. Between on or about November 10, 1995, and in or about May, 1996,

defendant DENNIS ATIYEH made pay-outs on bets made with ESB to ESB customers through

the business office at 881 Third Street, Whitehall, Pennsylvania.

11. Between on or about November 10, 1995, and in or about May, 1996,

parlay cards were prepared at the office at 881 Third Street, Whitehall, Pennsylvania.  Parlay

cards allowed ESB customers to wager on multiple events, primarily sporting events.  Parlay

cards were made available to ESB customers by telephone through a service known as “fax on

demand.”  When ESB customers requested a parlay card by contacting the telephone number

provided, parlay cards were made available to the “fax on demand” service from the office at 881

Third Street, Whitehall, Pennsylvania.

12. Between on or about November 10, 1995, and in or about May, 1996, five

or more persons, including defendant DENNIS ATIYEH, conducted, financed, managed,

supervised, directed and owned all or part of the gambling business located at 881 Third Street,

Whitehall, Pennsylvania.    
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13. Between on or about November 10, 1995, and in or about May, 1996, in

Lehigh County, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and elsewhere, defendant

DENNIS ATIYEH, 

together with others known and unknown to the grand jury, did unlawfully and knowingly

conduct, finance, manage, supervise, direct, and own all and part of an illegal gambling business

as that term is defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 1955(b), that is, a business:

a. that manufactured and printed parlay cards, in violation of the laws of the

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Title 18, Pennsylvania Consolidated

Statutes, Section 5512(b)(2);

b. that knowingly made and gave away a device to be used for gambling, that

is parlay cards, in violation of the laws of the Commonwealth of

Pennsylvania, Title 18, Pennsylvania Consolidated Statutes, Section

5513(a)(1); 

c. in which defendant DENNIS ATIYEH became a custodian of funds that

were wagered and to be wagered and leased and occupied property and

knowingly permitted it to be used for this purpose, in violation of the laws

of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Title 18, Pennsylvania

Consolidated Statutes, Sections 5514(4) and 5514(5),

and which illegal gambling business involved five or more persons who conducted, financed,

managed, supervised, directed and owned all and part of said business, remained in substantially

continuous operation for a period in excess of thirty days and which business had a gross revenue

in excess of $2,000 in a single day.
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In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1955.    
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COUNT TWO

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. The averments of paragraphs 1 through 12 of Count One are incorporated

by reference.

2. Between in or about September, 1995, and in or about May, 1996, in

Lehigh County, in the Eastern District of  Pennsylvania and elsewhere, defendants

DENNIS ATIYEH and 
JOSEPH ATIYEH

knowingly conspired and agreed, together with others known and unknown to the grand jury, to

conduct and attempt to conduct financial transactions and transfers affecting interstate and foreign

commerce, that is,  the receipt of  funds by Sports Connection and Worldwide Financial

Processors in the United States and the transfer, by wire and bank check, of these funds into an

overseas accounts of ESB:

a. knowing that the property involved in the transactions represented the

proceeds of some form of unlawful activity and which transactions involved

proceeds of a specified unlawful activity, that is, an illegal gambling

business, as charged in Count One of this indictment, with the intent to

promote the carrying on of the illegal gambling business,  in violation of

Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956(a)(1)(A)(i); 

b. knowing that the property involved in the transactions represented the

proceeds of some form of unlawful activity and which transactions involved

proceeds of a specified unlawful activity, that is, an illegal gambling
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business, as charged in Count One of this indictment, and knowing that the

transactions were designed, in whole and in part, to conceal and disguise

the nature, the location, the source, the ownership, and the control of the

proceeds of the illegal gambling business,  in violation of Title 18, United

States Code, Section 1956(a)(1)(B)(i); and

c. with the intent to promote the carrying on of the specified unlawful activity

as charged in Count One of this indictment, that is, an illegal gambling

business, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section

1956(a)(2)(A). 

MANNER AND MEANS

3. It was a part of the conspiracy that Sports Connection and Worldwide

Financial Processors obtained agreements with Western Union for the receipt of funds from ESB

customers to open accounts and make bets by Western Union “Quick Collect” service which

allowed for the expedited transfer of funds at a lower cost.    

4. It was a part of the conspiracy that Sports Connection and Worldwide

Financial Processors received funds to be used for opening accounts and betting with ESB.

5. It was a part of the conspiracy that customers of ESB were directed to

transfer funds to be used for betting to ESB, Sports Connection, Worldwide Financial Processors

and to an individual whose identity is known to the grand jury by means including, but not limited

to, Western Union, check, money order and credit card. 

6. It was a part of the conspiracy that defendant JOSEPH ATIYEH concealed

from individuals whose identities are known to the grand jury and who operated the office of
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Worldwide Financial Processors in Baton Rouge, Louisiana, the source and use of the funds

received by Worldwide Financial Processors.

7. It was a part of the conspiracy that approximately $891,000 was received

by Sports Connection and transferred by wire and bank check to ESB and defendant DENNIS

ATIYEH. 

8. It was a part of the conspiracy that approximately $4.5 million was

received by Worldwide Financial Processors in Baton Rouge, Louisiana and transferred by wire to

ESB in Montego Bay, Jamaica.

9. It was a part of the conspiracy that funds received by ESB were used to

fund the operations of Sports Marketing and Sales, Las Vegas Sports News and ESB.

OVERT ACTS

In furtherance of the conspiracy, defendants DENNIS ATIYEH, JOSEPH

ATIYEH, and others known and unknown to the grand jury, committed the following overt acts

in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania and elsewhere:

1. Between on or about November 10, 1995, and in or about May, 1996,

defendant DENNIS ATIYEH directed employees of ESB, Sports Marketing and Sales and Las

Vegas Sports News to direct customers of ESB to forward payments to open and fund their ESB

accounts to businesses including Sports Connection and Worldwide Financial Processors.

2. Between on or about November 27, 1995, and on or about December 30,

1995, defendant DENNIS ATIYEH caused Sports Connection to receive an amount in excess of

approximately $891,000 from customers of ESB.

3. Between on or about November 10, 1995, and on or about December 30,
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1995, defendant DENNIS ATIYEH caused Sports Connection to transfer approximately

$891,000 to defendant DENNIS ATIYEH and ESB.

4. On or about November 27, 1995, defendant DENNIS ATIYEH caused the

wire transfer of approximately $213,804 from Sports Connection, National Westminister Bank

account no. 8139002335, to the account of English Sports, U.S. dollar account no. 3813738,

CIBC Bank, Montego Bay, Jamaica.

5. Defendant DENNIS ATIYEH caused the transfer of approximately

$250,000 by bank check dated on or about November 30, 1995, from Sports Connection,

National Westminister Bank account no. 8139002335, payable to “English Sports c/o Dennis

Atiyeh.”

6. Between on or about November 30, 1995, and in or about May, 1996,

defendants DENNIS ATIYEH and JOSEPH ATIYEH caused Worldwide Financial Processors to

receive approximately $4.5 million from customers of ESB.

 7. Between in or about November 30, 1995, and in or about May, 1996,

defendants DENNIS ATIYEH and JOSEPH ATIYEH caused Worldwide Financial Processors to

wire transfer approximately $4.5 million to ESB in Montego Bay, Jamaica.

8. Between in and about January, 1996, and in and about February, 1996,

defendant DENNIS ATIYEH transferred funds from an ESB account in Montego Bay, Jamaica

to the account of Sports Marketing and Sales in Lehigh County, Pennsylvania.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956(h).
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COUNTS THREE AND FOUR 

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. Paragraphs 1 through 12 of Count One of the indictment are incorporated

by reference.

2. On or about the dates set forth below, in Lehigh County, in the Eastern

District of Pennsylvania and elsewhere, the defendant, 

DENNIS ATIYEH,

knowing that the property involved the following financial transactions represented the proceeds

of some form of unlawful activity, conducted and aided, abetted and willfully caused the

conducting of the following financial transactions, in the approximate amounts listed below,

which, in fact, involved the proceeds of a specified unlawful activity, that is an illegal gambling

business, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1955, charged in Count One of the

indictment, with intent to promote the carrying on of the illegal gambling business:

Count Financial Transaction

Three Wire transfer of approximately $213,804 on or about November 27, 1995,

from Sports Connection, National Westminister Bank account no.

8139002335, to the account of English Sports, U.S. dollar account no.

3813738, CIBC Bank, Montego Bay, Jamaica.

Four Transfer of approximately $250,000 by bank check dated on or about

November 30, 1995, from Sports Connection, National Westminister Bank

account no. 8139002335, payable to “English Sports c/o Dennis Atiyeh.” 

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956(a)(1)(A)(i) and 2.
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COUNTS FIVE THROUGH TWELVE

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. Paragraphs 1 through 12 of Count One of the indictment are incorporated

by reference.

2. On or about the dates stated below,  in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania

and elsewhere, the defendant, 

DENNIS ATIYEH, 

transported, transmitted and transferred funds, and caused the transportation, transmittal and

transfer of funds, from a place outside of the United States to a place in the United States, that is,

the transfer by bank checks in the approximate amounts stated below from the account of English

Sports Information Processors Limited at CIBC Bank, U.S. Dollar Account No. 3813738, in

Montego Bay, Jamaica, to the account of Sports Marketing and Sales at First Fidelity Bank, also

known as First Union Bank, in the Eastern District of Pennsylvania, Account No. 3022390946,

with the intent to promote the carrying on of the specified unlawful activity, that is, the illegal

gambling business, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1955, as charged in

Count One of the indictment:

Count Date Amount

Five 1/20/96 $10,000

Six 1/22/96 $10,000

Seven 1/29/96 $10,000

Eight 2/3/96 $10,000
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Nine 2/3/96 $10,000

Ten 2/9/96 $10,000

Eleven 2/21/96 $ 5,000

Twelve 2/22/96 $ 5,000

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956(a)(2)(A) and 2. 



13

COUNTS THIRTEEN THROUGH SIXTEEN

THE GRAND JURY FURTHER CHARGES THAT:

1. Paragraphs 1 through 12 of Count One of the indictment are incorporated

by reference.

2. On or about the dates stated below, in Lehigh County, in the Eastern

District of Pennsylvania and elsewhere, the defendants, 

DENNIS ATIYEH and
JOSEPH ATIYEH, 

transported, transmitted and transferred funds, and caused the transportation, transmittal and

transfer of funds, from a place inside of the United States to a place outside of the United States,

that is, the wiring of funds from the account of World Wide Financial Processors, Baton Rouge,

Louisiana, at Hibernia Bank, Account No. 0792112331, in the amounts stated below to the

account of ESB at CIBC Bank, U.S. Dollar Account No. 3813738, in Montego Bay, Jamaica,

with the intent to promote the carrying on of the specified unlawful activity, that is, the illegal

gambling business, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1955, as charged in

Count One of the indictment:

Count Date Amount

Thirteen 11/30/95 $4,420

Fourteen 12/1/95 $12,187

Fifteen 12/4/95 $14,547

Sixteen 12/5/95 $15,849.33

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1956(a)(2)(A) and 2. 



14

NOTICE OF FORFEITURE

1. As a result of the violations of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1956

set forth in Counts Two through Sixteen of this indictment, defendants:

DENNIS ATIYEH and
JOSEPH ATIYEH

shall forfeit to the United States of America:

a. any and all property constituting, or derived from, proceeds obtained,

directly or indirectly, as a result of the violations of Title 18, United States

Code, Section 1956 as charged in Counts Two through Sixteen of the

indictment; and

b. any and all property, real or personal, involved in the violations of Title 18,

United States Code, Section 1956 charged in Counts Two through Sixteen

of the indictment;

and any property traceable to such property, including, but not limited to, the sum of $ 4.5

million.

2. If any of the property subject to forfeiture, as a result of any act or

omission of the defendants:

a. cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;

b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, a third party;

c. has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the Court;

d. has been substantially diminished in value; or

e. has been commingled with other property which cannot be divided without
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difficulty;

it is the intent of the United States, pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(b),

incorporating Title 21, United States Code, Section 853(p), to seek forfeiture of any other

property of the defendant up to the value of the property subject to forfeiture.

All pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 982.

A TRUE BILL:

                                                          
FOREPERSON

                                                
MICHAEL R. STILES
United States Attorney


